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MACKENZIE HISE f/k/a MACKENZIE BROWN, )
individually and on behalf of all others similarly ')
situated,

Plaintiff,

Case No.21L0148
V. ' ’

DEMAND FOR JURY TRIAL

Serve registered agent at:”

801 Adlai Stevenson Drive

)
)
)
)
)
)
)
)
)
)
Springfield, Illinois 62703 )
)
)

~ Defendant.

CLASS ACTION COMPLAINT

[ |
Plaintiff MacKenzie Hise, formerly known as MacKenzie Brown, individually, and on .
. H
behalf of all others similarly situated, by her undersigned counsel, and for her Class Action
Complaint against Defendant Enhanced Recovery Company, LLC, states:

) ’ Introduction, Parties, Jurisdiction and Venue

1. The pr1mary purposes of the Fa1r Debt Collectlon Practlces Act (“FDCPA”) are to
eliminate “abusive debt collection practices by debt collectors” and to “insure that those debt
collectors who refrain from using abusive debt collection tactics are not competitively
J _ _
,
2, Enhanced Recovery Company, LLC, a debt collector, Vlolated the FDCPA by
engaging in two f01ms of proh1b1ted conduct.

3. First, Enhanced Recovely Company,; LLC, systematically used deceptive practices

to collect time-barred debts (i.e. debts that cannot be sued on because’ they are.beyond the
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ai)plicaﬁle statute of limitations) from Plaintiff MacKenzie Hisé and the putative class members. -
- Specifically, Enhanced Recovery Company failed to disclose that the debts were not legallsl
‘ enfdféeable becauée they were time-barred and failed‘tAo disqloée the effect of r/naléjng a payment
- on a time-barred debt.
4.  Second, Enhanced Recovery Compar}y misled MacKenzie Hise and the putative class
members that ERC was offering to settle their accounts, when; in reality, the “settlement” offefed

was merely a payment toward the entire balance alleged to be owed.

T 5T 7 This Tcase ultimately seeks to rectify Enhanced "Recovery “Comipany, LLC’s
misconduct, WhﬂC leveling the play.ing ﬁeld_ for debt collectors who actually follow the rules.
6. | Plaintiff MacKenzie Hise, formerly known as MacKenzie Brown (“Hise” or
“Plaintiff”) is an individual who resides in St. Clair County, Iilin:)is.

7. Defendant Enhanced Recovery Company, LLC (“ERC” or ‘;Defendant”) is a

Delaware limited liability company that is registered with and in good standing with the Illinois

Secretary of State.
8. ERC operates in the State of Illinois as a “Licensed Collection Agency,”
9. ERC’s website describes its “Core Services” as including -‘.‘Recovery &

Collections.”

10. ERC’S website states tﬁét ERC prc’)vides “debt collection”‘serviceé.

11..  ERC’s vyvebsite states that .EI’{C represents “a number of different creditors”
iﬁcluding, but ﬁot lirﬁited to cfeditofs in the “telecommunications”_indusfry.

12. ERC’s website states that ERC’s “goal is to make the coliections process as eélsy ‘

as possible for both the creditor and the consumer.”
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13.  ERC’s website states that thé reason it contacts'a consumer “is because [ERC has]

received information that potentially links [the consumer] to a debt that we have been contracted

to coll’ecf[.”
14. ERC’s website states that ERC “is contracted by creditors and in some instanqes
- debt purchasers. ERC® does not o§vn any of the deBts 1n which we service and we veireAclassiﬁed
as a ‘Debt Buyer.” If we are contacting you Aregarding a debt it is because we have been contractéd

to do s0.”

C T T 715777 "Ventie is proper as'the conduct alleged was committed ifithis Distfict and becauge -

Plaintiff resides in this District.

16.  Jurisdiction is proper in this Court under the FDCPA, 15 U.S.C. § 1692k(2)(d),
kbecause this -‘Court is a cowrt of competent jﬁrisdiction to adjudicate actions brought under. the
FDCPA.

Background
17.  Hise received and reviewed a January 13, 2021 dunning letter sent to her by ERC.
'\ Exhibit 1, ERC Dunning Letter (“the Letter”j.
18.  The Letter statés that Hise owes a debt to “Sprint” in the amount of $565.70.

19.  The Letter states that the letter is from a debt collector.

?

20.  Hise previously held an account with Sprint when she lived in the State of Ohio.
21.  Hise has never held an account with Sprint since living in the State of Illinois.
22, . Hise has made no payments to Sprint in the last nine years.

23.  Oninformation and belief, the applicable statute of limitations in Ohio to the Sprint

account referenced in the Letter is a maximum of eight years.
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24. The Letter did not state that ERC was time-ba?réd from ehforcing the debt jurider_
the applicable statute of limitation. | N |
25. The Lgtter did not state that suit could not be filed to enforce the debt.
26.  The Letter did ndt state that proVidiqg pa;tial payment would revi;fe ERC’é
extinguished right to collect the remaining baiance. |
217. Unbeknowﬁst- té Hise, the Letter attempﬁed to -pe-'rsuade Hise to make a partial
pélyment to revive Sprinf’s ability to collect the rema_ini.ng balance. |
Tt 28, T The Letter Stéte@, that ERC 'iS"z‘achbriZé'd to Séttlé -Slejr‘ accourit for less than the full
' original balance in the amount of $282.85.” | | |
29.  The Letter’s offer to “settle’,.’ the account is not truly a settlement offer as ERC states
that “upon completion of the settlement . . . all future collection efforts will ceasé, and the residual

¥ .

balance will remain with Sprin 2

30. The Letter does not state that by accepting the settlement offer that Hise would

forfeit the protection of the applicable statute of limitation.

31. On information and belief, Exhibit 1 is a form letter prepared and sent to consumers
by ERC.
32. On information and belief, a substantially similar version of Exhibit 1 was sent to

© the putative class members.

L4 . P . : .
33.  ERC’s failure to provide Hise and the putative class members that the debts were

_ time-barred put Hise and the putative class members at risk of paying the time-barred debts and -

renewing the applicable statute of limitations.
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]

34.  ERC’s attempt to gét Hise and the putative class members to pay a “settlement”
amount put Hise and the class members at risk of paying the time-barred debts and renewiﬁg the
applicable statute of limitations. |

35. ERC’s assertion that it was offering Hise and the putative | class .members a

“settlement” of the debts when in reality the debts would not be settled was an assertion made for

the purpose of inducing Hise and the putative class members to pay the debts.

COUNT I — VIOLATIONS OF THE FAIR D_EBT COLLECTION PRACTICES ACT —
‘ 15 U.S.C. §1692 ef seq.

)

' 36. Hise incorporates all pre\}ious paragraphs as.if fully stated in this Count.
37. - Hise seeks recovery individually, and on behalf a similarly situated class defined
'below. |
‘ 38.  Hise and the putative class members are “consumers” as defined by the Fair Debt-
Collection Practicés Act (“F DCPA™), 15 U.S.C. § 1692a(6), because they are natural persons and
are alleged by ERC to owe a debt.
39. . This lawsuit concerns a “debt” as defined by the FDCPA, 15 U.S.C. § 1692a(5),

#

* because ERC alleged Hise and the putative class members owed a sum of money arising out of

T ——~transactions that were primarily for persdnal, family or household purposes. e
40.  ERCis a “debt collector” as defined by' the FD’CPA, 15US.C. § i692a(6), because
it regularly collects or attenﬁptS t.o collect, directly or indirectly, debts owed or asserted to be owed

to other entities.

41.  ERCis a “debt collector”-as defined by the F DCPA, 15 U.S.C. § 1692a(6), because

it uses interstate commerce or the mails for a business the principal purpose of which is the -

collection of debts_.

42 ~~ERC’s actions violate 15 U.S.C. § 1692e because ERC’s actionsset forth above -
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concerning its collection of time=barred debts and in asserting that ERC was offering to settle the

debts censtitutee a false, deceptive or misleading means to collect a debt. |
| 43.  ERC’s actions‘violate 15 U.S.C. §v‘1692e(‘2)(A.) becauee ERC’sA actions set forth
above concerning its collection of time-barred debts misrep_te_sented the legal' status of the debts. _
44: ERC’S actions vio_late.15 U.S.C.§ 1692e(1'0)v because ERC’s actions set forth above
concerning its collection of time-barred debts and in asserting that ERC was offering to settle the \

debts constitute the use of a false representation and/or a deceptive means to collect or attempt to

45. ERC’s actlons violate 15 U.S.C. § 1692f because ERC’s actions set forth above
concerning its collectlon of time- barred debts and in assertmg that ERC was offerlncr to settle the
debts constitute an unfair‘and/or unconscionable means to collect a debt.

46.  Pursuant to [linois Code of Civil Proc’ednre 5/2—?01 and 5/2-802(a), Hise seeks to
represent two elasses of persens defined as follows: o |

Statute of Limitation Disclosure Class: All individuals in tne United States from:

- one year before the filing of this lawsuit until the date of class certification who

received a collection letter from ERC and the subJect debt had expired under the -
applicable statute of. hm1tat10ns

‘ 'Settlement Letter Class: 'All'individuals inthe United States from one year before” ~ — —~ -~

the ﬁlino of this lawsuit until the date of class certification to whom ERC sent a
letter in. which ERC made an offer of settlement and stated the residual balance
would remam with the creditor. :

13
47.  On information and belief, there are hundreds, if not thousands of putative class

‘members, making joinder of all class members is impracticable.

48, Hise’s claims are tynical of the claims of the putative class members.

49. Common questiens of law and fact apply to the class. These questioné may include,
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a) . Whether ERC is a “debt collector” as deﬁned by the FDCPA
) Whether ERC’s conduct as described in this Complaint is governed by the FDCPA
c) Whether ERC attempted to collect debts beyond. the apphcable statutes of limitation
without disclosing to consumers that the statute of limitation had expired;
d. Whether ERC communicated to consurners that it was making an offer of
set_tlernent while allowing the remaining balance to remain with the creditor;

¢)  Whether BRC’s actions violate the FDCPA;

f) Whether ERC used "fals'-e’,déc“efitiv'e_,”or ‘r‘ﬁi‘slezdiﬁg'ofrnisléadiﬁg“rﬁe'affs‘fofolléet —
or attempt to collect debts from Hise and the putative class members; and,
Q) Whether ERC used unfair or ‘unc:onscionable means to collect or attempt to collect
debts from Hise and the putative-class members. X
50, Hise will fair'ly and adequately represent the putative class members/.
51.  Hise has retained cou'nsel experienced in the prosecution of class actions, and Hise
is committed to Vigorously prosecuting the claims. |
52. Questions of law-and fact common to the putative class members predominate over
any questions of fact or law affecting any 1nd1v1dual member of the putative class

" 53. A class action is superior to other methods for the fair and efficient adjudication of

this controversy. ,
54. Due to ERC’s illegal conduct as described above the putatlve class members are
' entitled to actual damages under the FDCPA 15 U.S. C § 1692k(a)(1). Specrﬁcally, the putative
class members are entrtled to all amounts paid to ERC after ERC sent them a letter that: a) failed

- to disclose that the apphcable statute of limitation had run; or, b) made an offer of settlement but.

stated that the residual balance would remain with the creditor. -
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55. - Due to ERC’s illegal conduct as described above, Hise is entitled to statutory

damages of $1,000.00 under_ the FDCPA, 15 U.S.C. § 1692k(a)(2)(B)(i).
| 56. Due ﬁo ERC.’S illegal conduct as described above, the putative class fnembers are
entitled to statutory damages under the FDCPA, 15U.S.C. §'1‘692k(a)(2)(B)(ii).
57. ERC’s acts, as described above, were done intentidnally_ with the‘» purpose of
coercing Hise and the putative class members to pay the alieged debts.

58.  Due to ERC’s illegal conduct as described above, Plaintiff and the putative class

T T riémbers are éntitled to costs and attorneys” fees under the FDCPAS 15 USICT§1692k(@)(3).

PRAYER FOR RELIEF
WHEREFORE Plaintiff MécKenzie Hise, individually, and on behalf of all others simﬂarly
situat?d, requests that the Court enter a judgment agaihst Enhanced Recovei'y Coﬁpény, LLC, in
excess of §5 O},OO0.00 and grant the followin,%r relief:
) enter an order pursﬁant to Illinois Code of Civil Procedure 5/2-801 and 5/2-802(21),
certifying this action evls.a class action, and appoinﬁng MacKenzie Hise as class representative;

. b)’  enteran order appointing Butsch Roberts & Associates LLC as class counsel;

c) enter judgment in favbr of MacKenzie Hise, and the class for all damages available '

under the Fair Debt Collection Practices Act, including actual damages, étamtory damages,
attorneys’ fees and costs incurred in bringing this action;

d) enter an order o'r judgment declaring that ERC’s conduct Viol;tes the FDCPA;

e)  award MacKenzie Hise énd_the class all expenses'incurred in the litigation and
| reqﬁire ERC to pay the costs and expenses of class notice and administration; and,

f) award MacKenzie Hise and the ciass ali taxable court costs, any appliéable pre-
judgment aﬁd rpost-judgment interest énd any 'other reiief that this Court deems just and proper.

~
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. Dated: February 15, 2021 JURY TRIAL DEMANDED
BUTSCH ROBERTS & AssdciATEs LLC ‘

By: /s/ Christopher E. Roberts

David T. Butsch #6205434IL
Christopher E. Roberts #6302857IL
231 South Bemiston Ave., Suite 260

" Clayton, MO 63105
(314) 863-5700 (telephone)
(314) 863-5711 (fax)

. butsch@butschroberts.com

roberts@butschroberts.com

Counsel for MacKenzie Hise
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